
St. Croix Preparatory Academy
Board Meeting Agenda

August 16, 2022

1. Tour of Construction Areas - Bleachers, Press Box, Activities Offices
2. Call to Order at 6:30 pm.
3. Open Forum
4. Board Calendar
5. Consent Agenda (Board Minutes, Executive Director Report)

A. Board Minutes
B. Executive Director Report
C. Governance -- Meeting Minutes + Agenda Items

6. Agenda
A. Seating of New Board Members -- Christina Norman, Matt Stiles
B. Board Officers for the 2022-2023 school year - Chair, Vice Chair, 

Treasurer, Secretary/Clerk
C. 2022-2023 e-Learning Day Approval of 3 days
D. Board Election Committee Update & Discussion
E. Governance Committee - Update & Discussion
F. Succession Planning Committee -- Update & Discussion
G. Finance Committee -- Update & Discussion
H. Compensation Committee -- Discussion on establishing it as Board 

Committee
I. Advisory Board Member Participation in Board Meetings
J. Board Committee Recruitment - Discussion
K. Board Retreat -- Planning & Discussion
L. 2022-2023 Annual Report - 1st Reading, Approval in September
M. Facilities Office Space Discussion

7. Adjourn Meeting

    

2
4
9

11

15
16
17
21
22

33

34

1



SCPA Board Minutes June 29, 2021

School Board Minutes July 19, 2022

Members Present:  N. Donnay, R. Hajlo, D. Keyes, A. Melendres, S. Mueller, K. Pleticha, K. Denzer, A. 
Galati

Members Absent:  

Ex-officio Members Present:  K. Gutierrez

Public Hearing Call to Order in Accordance with Minn Stat 123B.38
R. Hajlo called the public hearing to order at 6:05 pm.

Public Hearing
K. Gutierrez explained Minn. Stat 123B.38, to which charter schools must comply per Minn. Stat 
123E.03.  K. Gutierrez then explained the proposed per-student fees for the 2022-2023 school 
year.  These included a per-student Technology Fee of $20 and Volunteer Background Check 
Fee of $5.  This is an increase of $5 from the previous year, due to the return to normal school 
operations post Covid-19, resulting in more volunteer opportunities and thus more background 
checks,  and a reduced percentage of students who paid the fees. The per-student fee would be 
waived for students qualifying for free lunch and reduced to $12.50 for those qualifying for 
reduced lunch.  There was discussion related and the likelihood of having to increase fees after 
next year.

There were no questions or comments from the public.  The public hearing was closed at 6:16 
pm.

Call to Order
R. Hajlo called the meeting to order at 6:17 pm.

Open Forum
There were no requests to speak at the Open Forum.

Consent Agenda – R. Hajlo
The Consent Agenda includes the board minutes from the June 28, 2022 meeting and the Executive 
Director’s Report

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda:  D. Keyes
Second:  J. Gottschalk
Approved:  All

2022-2023 Student Fee Approval – K. Gutierrez

Motion to approve the 2022-2023 Per-Student Fees of $25, which include an $20 Technology 
Fee and $5 Volunteer Background Check Fee.  For those qualifying for reduced lunch, the per-
student fees will be reduced to a total of $12.50; for those qualifying for free lunch, the fees will be 
waived:  A. Melendres
Second:  N. Donnay
Approved:  All

2022-2023 Federal Covid-19 Related Grants Review – K. Gutierrez

2



2
SCPA Board Minutes June 29, 2021

K. Gutierrez presented a summary of the Federal Covid-19 Grants and related funding with a description, 
amounts, fiscal year applicability, along with potential use of funds.  She also noted that the School will 
accelerate some FY 24 funding into FY 23 to hire personnel to support the mental health of our K-12 
students.

Approve CliftonLarsonAllen (CLA) for the FY23 Audit and Tax Preparation Work
K. Gutierrez indicated that search and rebid for audit and tax services is done every five years.  The FY23 
is the final year before this process occurs.  CLA’s audit engagement letter reflects a 15% increase from 
last year, and the tax preparation engagement letter reflects a 7% increase.  There was discussion. 

Motion to approve CliftonLarsonAllen for FY23 audit and tax work: 
Second:
Approved:  All

Closed Session – R. Hajlo

Motion to close the meeting, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 13D.05, subdivision 2(b) for 
the discussion of allegations against an individual subject to the Board’s authority:  S. Mueller
Second:  A. Galati
Approved:  All

Closed Session

Return to Open Session

Motion to open the meeting after concluding the closed session:  A. Galati
Second:  K. Pleticha
Approved:  All

Resolution to Allegations against individual subject to the Board’s authority

Adjourn Meeting

Motion to adjourn at 7:41 pm:  S. Mueller
Second:  A. Galati
Approved:  All

Submitted by J. Gutierrez, St. Croix Preparatory Academy

3



Executive Director’s Report to the Board

Date of Report:  August 2022
Report Prepared By:  Jon Gutierrez

Operational Items:
• Weekly meetings with administrative leadership and individual leadership team members – A. 

Sachariason, J. Karetov, K. Gutierrez, P. Rosell, B. Blotske, R. Dippel, K. Seim, C. Olson; and weekly 
administrative leadership meeting.

• Monitoring bleacher/press box/trail/athletic admin office, and concession trailer project start and 
progress.

• Network event with Friends of Education board members and the network of Friends’ schools.
• Communication Manager work, including accelerated transition of email conversion to Constant 

Contact, and managing the update of all website content (e.g. email addresses, linked documents, 
rebranding of content when appropriate, etc.)

• Preparation and planning for school kickoff, which includes Back to School nights, presentation to new 
employees, presentation to returning employees, discussions with Foundation on initiating Annual 
Giving Campaign, etc.

• Planning and reinitiating the character education – this began in the first year of the school’s inception, 
was discussed/enhanced in 2012 based on a board initiative.  The Lower School did some significant 
improvements and changes based their attendance and implementation of principles from Leadership 
Advancing Character and Culture in Schools (LACCS).  We will spend time rolling out our three year 
plan to the faculty during the training prior to school.  We will provide a board presentation regarding 
this in September or October.

• Significant documentation related to board committees and meetings with committees (e.g. Board 
Election, Governance, Succession Planning, and Compensation) in an effort to make these processes 
more mainstream market.  

• Updated Health Procedures Summary and Covid-19 Protocols (Drafts included – these will be updated 
based on CDC’s guidelines on August 11)

Professional Development:  See Attachment

4



COVID-19 Community Levels and Prevention Strategies
These strategies are based on the Washington County reported Community Level, our internal indicators like 

student absences, noted specific core group outbreaks, and staffing. The strategies are derived from the 
CDC/MDH Operational Guidance for Schools dated 5/27/2022 and 8/1/2022.

Isolation – Staff and students who test positive for COVID-19 need to complete the respective COVID 
notification form immediately and notify supervisor & HR (staff) or Division attendance line (students). 
Positive individuals must stay home for at least 5 days from the start of symptoms and may return to school 
on day 6 if symptoms have improved and no fever for 24 hours without fever reducing medication. On days 6-
10 the individual must wear a well-fitting mask and go/stay home if any symptoms worsen/develop.

Quarantine – no quarantine is required for a close contact at school. Staff and students who have positive 
household members may attend school if their COVID vaccine is up-to-date (initial series and all eligible 
boosters). If vaccine is not up-to-date staff/student needs to stay home for 5 days and may return on day 6 if 
has not tested positive for COVID and has no symptoms associated with COVID. On days 6-10 the staff/student 
needs to wear a well-fitting mask and go/stay home if any symptoms develop. It is strongly encouraged that 
household close contacts test between days 5-7, and any time symptoms develop, regardless of vaccination 
status.

Low Community Level • Maintain good ventilation
• Provide at-home COVID-19 test kits as requested
• Provide information on vaccines
• Report positive cases (weekly aggregate report)
• Send notifications to school close contacts within 24 

hours of receiving positive case info from staff/family

Medium Community Level • Same as Low, plus:
• Alert school community of increased level
• Promote at-home COVID-19 screening testing
• Convene COVID Response Team

High Community Level • Same as Low and Medium, plus:
• Universal indoor masking recommended
• Hold activities outside if feasible, consider 

rescheduling or cancelling
• Consider returning to cohorts

Outbreak – regardless of community level. 
Defined as 3 or more in a classroom, on a 
sports team, at an extracurricular activity, or 
at YCARE OR 10% of a grade and/or Division

• Same as for High Community Level, plus:
• Work with state/local public health 

At all levels, people can wear a mask based on personal preference, informed by personal level 
of risk. People with symptoms, a positive test, or exposure to someone with COVID-19 should 
wear a mask. 5



Prep Guidance for a Healthy Learning Environment 
2022-23

Taken from the CDC/MDH Operational Guidance for Schools dated 5/27/2022

These every day strategies are part of the school’s role in helping prevent the 
spread of infectious diseases, such as influenza (flu), respiratory syncytial virus 

(RSV), gastrointestinal viruses (norovirus), and COVID-19.

Vaccinations – Staying current with Routine Immunizations is an important part of preventing 
many infectious diseases. Prep complies with the Minnesota Immunization Law. Families are 
encouraged to speak with their primary healthcare provider about any immunization 
concerns. Students need the vaccines required by law prior to the first day of attendance, a 
healthcare provider signed medical exemption, or a notarized conscientious objection on file 
in the Health Office.

Stay Home When Sick – People with signs/symptoms of an infectious illness, staff and 
students, are encouraged to stay home. Prep encourages staff/families to check in with their 
healthcare provider regarding any suggested infectious disease testing (strep, COVID-19, 
mono, influenza, etc). As long as any tests are negative, signs/symptoms of illness should be 
improved for at least 24 hours prior to returning including no fever for 24 hours without fever-
reducing medication.

Infectious Disease Reporting – Prep reports all required diseases to the state, including 
aggregate numbers for COVID-19 cases. Prep works with state/local public health whenever an 
outbreak of an infectious disease occurs.

Ventilation Systems – Prep has a state of the art HVAC system that is new and well 
maintained. This optimizes our indoor air quality. Prep will continue to use in room HEPA air 
purifiers in the cafeteria, large room spaces, the health office and some classrooms.

Hand Hygiene and Respiratory Etiquette – Washing hands has proven to help prevent the 
spread of infectious diseases. Prep teaches and reinforces proper handwashing procedures 
and when. especially before and after eating, after bathroom use and after recess. When not 
feasible to wash hands hand sanitizer is available and encouraged.

Prep teaches and reinforces covering of coughs and sneezes to help prevent the spread of 
infectious diseases. Students and staff who are experiencing uncontrollable coughs/sneezes 
are encouraged to stay/go home until symptoms have improved.

Cleaning & Disinfecting – Waiting for update from Bill6

https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/schedules/hcp/imz/child-adolescent.html


J. Gutierrez
Professional Development Plan

2022-2023

Month Category Title Description/Comments
July 2022 AudioBook – 12 hours The Iliad, translation by Robert Fagles

Videos – 12 hours Erica Stevenson, Iliad Books 1-24, Moan (Modern Ancients), Inc.
Audiobook – 12 hours The Odyssey, translation by Robert Fagles

Videos – 12 hours Erica Stevenson, Iliad Books 1-24, Moan (Modern Ancients), Inc.
Book Hostages No More, The Fight for Education Freedom and the 

Future of the American Child, by Betsy DeVos
Video Lecture – 48 minutes The Heroic Quest, Vergil, Aeneid – Missouri State University 

Book Aeneid, by Virgil, books 1-7
Video Lectures – 15 hours Aeneid, Books 1-7,  Video lectures by Erica Stevenson, Tim McGee

7



8



SCPA Board Minutes June 29, 2021

School Board Minutes July 28, 2022

Members Present:  R. Hajlo, A. Galati, J. Gutierrez

Members Absent:  

Ex-officio Members Present:  

Meeting began at 3:05 pm

Board Member Email Addresses
Discussed standardizing board member email addresses for consistency, branding and ease of fulfilling future 
inquiries/data requests.  J. Gutierrez to communicate and coordinate.

Board Member Duties/Expectations and Committee Structure
Per the Board Description of Duties, discussed the necessity of each board member committing to work 8-10 hours 
on board related items (e.g. committees).  This will assist with succession planning and sustainability of the 
organization.

Summary of Committees with Recommendations

Governance Committee
Discussed restarting the policy review work.  Reviewed the chart of mandatory policies, those requiring 
review this year and staggered review for other policies.  Discussed the need to consider migrating to 
standard Minnesota School Board Association verbiage in policies – the advantage is that they have been 
vetted/reviewed and reference current case law; the disadvantage is they are often quite lengthy and written 
for traditional districts.  Also discussed the need to have additional members on this committee.

Succession Planning Committee
Discussed the importance of this committee and the immediate need to begin regular meetings and obtain 
additional members.  The work of this committee would involve:

• Defining job descriptions for the Executive Director and Executive Director of Finance & 
Operations

• Obtaining employment agreements (related to these positions) that in place at other schools – then 
beginning the initial work of drafting employment agreements that are appropriate for St. Croix 
Prep.

• Determining if there are viable internal candidates that fit into the succession plan.  If yes, is there 
a multi-year transition plan as there was with other succession plans in the school (e.g. MS 
Principal, Activities Director, etc.).  If there are no viable internal candidates, determining the 
process and timelines for an external search.

• Determine the interview process and panel participants (e.g. board members, current leadership, 
faculty, etc.)

• Discussing succession planning for the board.  This has already been initiated by the conversations 
and resolution of the board election tie.

• Evaluating proactive and crisis succession plans for other leadership positions 

Finance Committee
This is the longest standing committee and has evolved in its function through annual budgeting, audits, tax 
preparation, three successful bond issuances, annual S&P reviews, investor calls, etc.  Unless determined 

9



2
SCPA Board Minutes June 29, 2021

by the Finance Committee the Governance Committee has no reason to change any of the current 
processes.

Compensation Committee
This committee is an operational committee, established approximately 15 years ago.  Its intent was to 
address faculty compensation.  Due to some of the experiences and discussion this year, it is recommended 
that this be a board committee.  This will allow the committee to expand its focus to include compensation 
related to the entire organization -- executive leadership, administration, faculty and all support personnel.  
This will flow naturally with the information which will be gathered from the Succession Planning 
committee. 

Miscellaneous Committee Comments
Each committee should have a chair, keep minutes, and meet monthly (with the exception of the Finance 
Committee, unless they determine otherwise – Note:  The amount of information the board currently 
receives from quarterly financial review, budget amendments, far exceeds that of other boards and our 
approach has been fully supported by our authorizer).  Each committee will then submit its minutes and 
recommendations for discussion at the monthly board meeting. The committees are not subject to open 
meeting law (e.g. public notice requirements, considerations for closed meetings, etc.) as they do not have a 
board quorum and board authority.

Committee Member Recruitment
Each board member needs to decide which committees they would like to serve on.  The board needs to 
decide if there is a requirement to serve on a specific number of committees or if there is a limit on the 
number of committees a board member may serve on.  The Board Chair is an ex-officio member of each 
committee.  The Board also needs to determine how it wants to select members (e.g. via conversation, 
response to questions, etc.)

Board Meeting Participation by Advisory Board Members
Discussed returning to the practice of having advisory board members more actively present and engage in the 
monthly board meetings.  This may include monthly reports, presentations, etc.  Advisory board members include 
the Principals and Director of Student Services.  There was also mention of returning to quarterly 
presentations/reports from other administrative areas (e.g. facilities, activities, etc.)

The meeting ended at 4:30 pm

Submitted by J. Gutierrez, St. Croix Preparatory Academy

10



ST. CROIX PREPARATORY ACADEMY
BOARD CHAIR DESCRIPTION OF DUTIES

I. DESCRIPTION OF DUTIES 
 
The description of duties per Article V, Section 3 is as follows:
 

Section 3.  President (Chief Executive Officer).  The President shall:

(a) Exercise the functions of the Office of the President of the Corporation;
(b) Preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors;
(c) Perform such duties and exercise such powers as are necessary or incident to the 

supervision and management of the business and affairs of the Corporation as 
directed by the Board of Directors;

(d) Sign and deliver, in the name of the Corporation, all deeds, mortgages, bonds, 
contracts or other instruments requiring an officer’s signature, unless otherwise 
directed by the Board;

(e) Have the general powers and duties usually vested in the office of the president and;
(f) Have such other powers and perform such other duties as are prescribed by 

Minnesota Statutes, Section 317A.305, subd. 2, as amended, and as the Board of 
Directors may from time to time prescribe.

11



ST. CROIX PREPARATORY ACADEMY
BOARD VICE CHAIR DESCRIPTION OF DUTIES

I. DESCRIPTION OF DUTIES 
 
The description of duties per Article V, Section 4 is as follows:
 

Section 4.  Vice-President.  The Vice-President shall:

(a) Exercise the functions of the Office of the President of the Corporation,; in the absence of the 
President;

(b) Preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, in the absence of the President;
(c) Perform such duties and exercise such powers as are necessary or incident to the 

supervision and management of the business and affairs of the Corporation as directed by the 
Board of Directors, in the absence of the President;

(d) Sign and deliver, in the name of the Corporation, all deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts or 
other instruments requiring an officer’s signature, unless otherwise directed by the Board, in 
the absence of the President;

(e) Have the general powers and duties usually vested in the Office of the President, in the 
absence of the President and;

(f) Have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board of Directors may from 
time to time prescribe.

12



ST. CROIX PREPARATORY ACADEMY
BOARD TREASURER DESCRIPTION OF DUTIES

I. DESCRIPTION OF DUTIES 
 
The description of duties per Article V, Section 5 is as follows:
 

Section 5.  Treasurer (Chief Financial Officer).  The Treasurer or the Treasurer’s designee shall:

(a) Keep accurate financial records for the Corporation and accurate accounts of all monies of 
the Corporation received or disbursed;  

(b) Deposit all monies, drafts and checks in the name of, and to the credit of, the Corporation in 
such banks and depositories as the Board of Directors shall from time to time designate;  

(c) Ensure the proper care and custody of the corporate funds and securities;
(d) Have the power to endorse for deposit all notes, checks and drafts received by the 

Corporation at the direction of the Board, making proper vouchers for the deposit;
(e) Disburse the funds of the Corporation and issue checks and drafts in the name of the 

Corporation as order by the Board of Directors;  
(f) Render to the Board President and the Board of Directors, whenever required, an account of 

all of the transactions as Chief Financial officer and of the financial condition of the 
Corporation; and,

(g) Perform such other duties and have such other powers as may from time to time be 
prescribed by the Board of Directors.

13



ST. CROIX PREPARATORY ACADEMY
BOARD SECRETARY DESCRIPTION OF DUTIES

I. DESCRIPTION OF DUTIES 
 
The description of duties per Article V, Section 6 is as follows:
 

Section 6.  Secretary.  The Secretary shall maintain the records of the Office of the Corporation and shall:

(a) Attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and all committees as required;
(b) Record all proceedings in the Minutes of the Board of Directors and committees in a book to 

be kept for that purpose;
(c) Preserve all documents and records belonging to the Corporation;
(d) Give or cause to be given notice of all meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees; 

and,
(e) Perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

14



15



ST. CROIX PREPARATORY ACADEMY
BOARD ELECTION COMMITTEE

I. PURPOSE 
 

Coordinate the annual board elections at St. Croix Prep.
 

II. MEMBERS 
 

Nicole Donnay, board member (teacher)
Susan Peterson, Communication Manager

 

III. DUTIES OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

• Maintain the board roster
• Communicate board vacancies for elections in accordance with the bylaws and state statute
• Solicit and receive board nomination forms
• Develop the Voter’s Guide for the election
• Populate Simply Voting with voter and candidate information
• Communicate election results
• Communicate with elected members on St. Croix Prep training requirements prior to seating, board duties 

and expectations, etc.
• Determine when St. Croix Prep training has been completed
• Communicate within organization when elected members may be seated (e.g. Schedule K, Conflict of 

Interest, background check, email/website/BoardBook setup, etc.
 

IV. QUESTIONS 

• Is this a subcommittee of the Governance Committee
• Is this committee responsible for communicating, monitoring the completion of the MN State statute training 

(finance, governance, employment law) – to be started within six (6) months of seating and completed in 12 
months.  

• Do we need more members?

 

16



SCPA Board Minutes June 29, 2021

School Board Minutes July 28, 2022

Members Present:  R. Hajlo, A. Galati, J. Gutierrez

Members Absent:  

Ex-officio Members Present:  

Meeting began at 3:05 pm

Board Member Email Addresses
Discussed standardizing board member email addresses for consistency, branding and ease of fulfilling future 
inquiries/data requests.  J. Gutierrez to communicate and coordinate.

Board Member Duties/Expectations and Committee Structure
Per the Board Description of Duties, discussed the necessity of each board member committing to work 8-10 hours 
on board related items (e.g. committees).  This will assist with succession planning and sustainability of the 
organization.

Summary of Committees with Recommendations

Governance Committee
Discussed restarting the policy review work.  Reviewed the chart of mandatory policies, those requiring 
review this year and staggered review for other policies.  Discussed the need to consider migrating to 
standard Minnesota School Board Association verbiage in policies – the advantage is that they have been 
vetted/reviewed and reference current case law; the disadvantage is they are often quite lengthy and written 
for traditional districts.  Also discussed the need to have additional members on this committee.

Succession Planning Committee
Discussed the importance of this committee and the immediate need to begin regular meetings and obtain 
additional members.  The work of this committee would involve:

• Defining job descriptions for the Executive Director and Executive Director of Finance & 
Operations

• Obtaining employment agreements (related to these positions) that in place at other schools – then 
beginning the initial work of drafting employment agreements that are appropriate for St. Croix 
Prep.

• Determining if there are viable internal candidates that fit into the succession plan.  If yes, is there 
a multi-year transition plan as there was with other succession plans in the school (e.g. MS 
Principal, Activities Director, etc.).  If there are no viable internal candidates, determining the 
process and timelines for an external search.

• Determine the interview process and panel participants (e.g. board members, current leadership, 
faculty, etc.)

• Discussing succession planning for the board.  This has already been initiated by the conversations 
and resolution of the board election tie.

• Evaluating proactive and crisis succession plans for other leadership positions 

Finance Committee
This is the longest standing committee and has evolved in its function through annual budgeting, audits, tax 
preparation, three successful bond issuances, annual S&P reviews, investor calls, etc.  Unless determined 

17



2
SCPA Board Minutes June 29, 2021

by the Finance Committee the Governance Committee has no reason to change any of the current 
processes.

Compensation Committee
This committee is an operational committee, established approximately 15 years ago.  Its intent was to 
address faculty compensation.  Due to some of the experiences and discussion this year, it is recommended 
that this be a board committee.  This will allow the committee to expand its focus to include compensation 
related to the entire organization -- executive leadership, administration, faculty and all support personnel.  
This will flow naturally with the information which will be gathered from the Succession Planning 
committee. 

Miscellaneous Committee Comments
Each committee should have a chair, keep minutes, and meet monthly (with the exception of the Finance 
Committee, unless they determine otherwise – Note:  The amount of information the board currently 
receives from quarterly financial review, budget amendments, far exceeds that of other boards and our 
approach has been fully supported by our authorizer).  Each committee will then submit its minutes and 
recommendations for discussion at the monthly board meeting. The committees are not subject to open 
meeting law (e.g. public notice requirements, considerations for closed meetings, etc.) as they do not have a 
board quorum and board authority.

Committee Member Recruitment
Each board member needs to decide which committees they would like to serve on.  The board needs to 
decide if there is a requirement to serve on a specific number of committees or if there is a limit on the 
number of committees a board member may serve on.  The Board Chair is an ex-officio member of each 
committee.  The Board also needs to determine how it wants to select members (e.g. via conversation, 
response to questions, etc.)

Board Meeting Participation by Advisory Board Members
Discussed returning to the practice of having advisory board members more actively present and engage in the 
monthly board meetings.  This may include monthly reports, presentations, etc.  Advisory board members include 
the Principals and Director of Student Services.  There was also mention of returning to quarterly 
presentations/reports from other administrative areas (e.g. facilities, activities, etc.)

The meeting ended at 4:30 pm

Submitted by J. Gutierrez, St. Croix Preparatory Academy

18



 

 

 

Board Member 

Description of Duties 

 

General Purpose:  Member of the governing body of St. Croix Preparatory Academy is primarily 

responsible for governance, fiscal accountability, student achievement, strategic direction, and fulfilling 

the mission of the school in accordance with its bylaws and founding documents. 

 

Reports To: Board 

 

Hours: 3 year term; average time commitment is 8-10 hours per month with additional time required if 

involved in committees and project work.  It is expected that board members will be involved on 

committees and project work.  The total time commitment per month will be approximately 15 hours. 

 

Essential Duties and Responsibilities include but are not limited to:  

 Governance.  This includes familiarity and adherence with public charter school statute (124E), 

Nonprofit Corporation statute (317A), the School’s Bylaws, Open Meeting Law, Minnesota 

Government Data Practices Act, MDE and Authorizer compliance requirements, authorizer 

contract, and other related legal requirements.  Board members are expected to be familiar with 

the Carver Governance model which the School has adhered to since its inception. 

 Financial Accountability.  This includes annual budget review, annual report preparation, audit 

review, awareness of financial metrics to ensure continued favorable review from outside 

business partners (e.g. banking, investors, etc.) and to guarantee future sustainability and 

program growth. 

 Student Achievement.  This includes an annual review of student performance in comparison 

with state and national standardized tests and an annual evaluation of post-secondary and 

workforce readiness in accordance with state requirements. 

 Meeting Attendance.  The Board meets on the third Tuesday of every month.  Board members 

are expected to review their board information prior to the meeting and to meet the attendance 

requirements specified in Minnesota statute.  

 Strategic Direction.  The Board is responsible for the continued strategic direction of the 

institution in alignment with the School’s mission, definition of classical education, and 

implementation of the diffusions of innovation theory.  Examples of strategic discussions may 

include the following:  facility development, athletic field development, compensation models to 

ensure fiscal responsibility, board policy development, school replication, succession planning, 

revenue generation opportunities, community relations, etc.  

 Training.  Board members must meet the state mandated training requirements.  In addition, 

ongoing training will be provided on the aforementioned items (e.g. governance, financial 

accountability, student achievement, strategic direction, etc.) and the following items. 

o Communication Protocol.   The School’s communication protocol has been in place since 

2004.  A board member’s understanding and adherence to the protocol maintains respect 

for operational authority throughout the organization. 

o Classical Education Philosophy.  The School’s classical education philosophy has been in 

place since 2004.  A board member’s understanding and support of this philosophy will 

19



 

 

be enhanced through this training and selected readings from The Well-Trained Mind 

(Bauer and Wise), Why Knowledge Matters (E.D. Hirsch, Jr.), Cultural Literacy (E.D. 

Hirsch, Jr.), and Trivium 21c (Martin Robinson). 

o Operational Training.  Although not specifically responsible for day to day operational 

decisions, it is important for board members to understand the operational complexity of 

St. Croix Prep.  This will be done through meetings with the administrative personnel 

(e.g. Executive Director, COO, Lower School Principal, Middle School Principal, Upper 

School Principal, Special Education Director, Activities Director, Facilities Director, 

Communications Director, Technology Director, etc.).  In addition, newly elected board 

members must attend one of the prospective family Informational meetings. 

o Diffusions of Innovation Theory.  The School has always evaluated its purpose, growth 

model, marketing, and operations in terms of diffusions of innovation theory (developed 

by Everett Rogers in 1962) as presented by Geoffrey Moore in his books Crossing the 

Chasm and Inside the Tornado.  Marketing the school, positioning/differentiating it 

within its market, development of a whole product and operations (e.g., hiring, 

governance models, policy development, recruiting, and programming) all take into 

consideration the five segments of classification typically described in technology 

adoption (e.g., innovators, early adopters, early majority, late majority, and laggards).  

This impacts the School’s hiring practices, governance model, policy development, 

recruiting practices, etc.  Board members will be introduced to this through selected 

readings from Crossing the Chasm (G. Moore), Inside the Tornado (M. Gladwell), The 

Tipping Point (M. Gladwell), Built to Last (J. Collins) 

Note:  This training will be conducted on an on-going basis and some will be included as a part 

of the regular board meeting agenda.  An estimate of the time required for training is noted 

below: 

 State mandated training on governance, finance, and employment law – 6-8 hours. 

 Meetings with operational personnel – 10 hours 

 Informational meeting – 2 hours 

 Required reading – 15 to 20 hours 

 Communication Protocol – 1 hour 

 Classical Education Philosophy – 1 hour 

 Open Meeting Law – 1 hour 

 Minnesota Government Data Practices Act – 1 hour 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20



SCPA Governance Committee Minutes August 3, 2022

School Board Minutes August 3, 2022

Members Present:  S. Mueller, N. Donnay, 

Members Absent:  

Ex-officio Members Present:  R. Hajlo, K. Gutierrez, J. Gutierrez

Meeting began at 4:35 pm

Board Member Officer Discussion:
Discussed Board officer roles and how they relate to Board succession planning. Treasurer, Secretary, 
and Board Clerk roles are currently vacant. The committee would like to recommend Kelly Gutierrez, who 
is on the finance committee, to be the Board treasurer. After comparing the current Secretary and Board 
Clerk responsibilities, we recommend Jon Gutierrez to work as the secretary as he is organizing Board 
documents in order to smoothly transition this role to a Board member in the near future. We would like to 
ask a Board member if they would be interested in taking on the Board Clerk responsibilities. Angie Galati 
has expressed some interest. 

Succession Planning Committee Membership Discussion: 
As a committee, we decided that additional members were needed in order to accomplish our goals of 
strategically and successfully transitioning key leadership positions.  We are recommending the addition 
of Terri Smith, Chad Olson, and Peggy Rosell to the committee.  

• Terri Smith, Human Resources Director, will support the team with researching job descriptions 
from (Executive Director, CFO/COO, Principals) and employment agreements (Executive 
Director, CFO/COO, Principals) from the schools that we typically benchmark ourselves with 
(Eagle Ridge, Nova, Parnassus, Hiawatha Academies, Hmong College Prep, etc.). 

• Chad Olson, Technology Director, will support the committee by helping communicate information 
by creating presentation documents (timelines, structure, etc.). 

• Peggy Rosell, Student Services Director, will work with us as an administrative representative as 
she is a key member of the current leadership team. 

Project Timeline: 
As a part of the process, the following items will need to be completed: job description and employment 
agreement gathering, Board approved job descriptions and employment agreements, searching for 
internal/external candidates, assessment/evaluation of candidates, transition plan, etc. Jon G. will create 
plan with these items and a general timeline. 

The meeting ended at 5:40 pm

Submitted by N. Donnay, St. Croix Preparatory Academy

21



 

  

 

 

 

St. Croix Prep Board Finance Committee 

Board Report  

August 16, 2022 

 

1.  Finance Committee Overview  

• Please review attached overview prior to the board meeting.  Finance 
Committee Chair, Paul McDowell, will present the overview and direct most of 
his time to addressing board questions and suggestions regarding FC role and 
objectives.  
 

2. Discussion re: SCPA Board Committees – types, composition, appointment process 

• Note:  This work came out of the Finance Committee’s discussions about the FC’s 
composition and appointment process and has been expanded to all board 
committees for purposes of board discussion. 

 

22



Finance Committee 
Overview 

August 12, 2022

23



2

Finance Committee (FC) 
Accountability and Strategic Initiatives

Sustainability 
Strategies

FC - Role

• Support Exec Director of 
Finance & Operations 
(EDFO) position & assess  
internal controls

• Support BOD members  -
financial accountability &  
finance strategic 
initiatives

FC – Objectives

• All financial arena tasks 
performed and 
adequately reviewed

• Provide clarity of roles             
to minimize overlap

• Provide training 
continuity for new people 
(shorten learning curves)

Sustainability
Strategies

Quarterly & Annual 
Processes

Daily, Weekly,                                    
Monthly Recurring Functions

24



3

Finance Committee (FC) 
Accountability and Strategic Initiatives

Sustainability 
Strategies

“Do It” “Review It”

Sustainability
Strategies

Quarterly & Annual 
Processes

Daily, Weekly,                                    
Monthly Recurring Functions

BOD
FC- Support  & Assignments
EDFO -Support

EDFO
FC - support

Admin Staff
EDFO- Support

BOD – Heavy
Other (FOE??)

BOD - Moderate
FC – 1st Review
External CPA

BOD –Light
FC – Controls
EDFO - Supervise 

Other (??)

25



4

Finance Committee (FC)
Accountability and Strategic Initiatives

FC – Responsibilities
• Conduct all meeting and functions in compliance with SCPA Bylaws –

Article 4 Section 9

• Assess continual compliance with SCPA Bylaws – Article IX (Finance Matters)

• See “Do It & Review It” functions per Accountability and Strategic Initiatives pyramid

• Build an annual FC calendar, and perform items timely

• Prioritize support and control review functions related to EDFO and Admin Staff

• Prioritize Sustainability Strategies (suggestions to BOD, or directives from BOD)

• Complete prioritized tasks, and move to the next

26



5

Finance Committee (FC)
Accountability and Strategic Initiatives

• Address the “Million Dollar Question” – Introduction to School Finance” -BKDA
How do you continue to balance your budget                                                         

when you are no longer adding students/revenue?
• Awareness of financial metrics to guarantee future sustainability and program growth

 Evaluate non-fixed revenue sources (existing and potential) for maximization opportunities
 Evaluate non-salary/benefit expense categories for largest potential cost efficiencies vs. 

typical inflationary trends
• Compensation models to ensure fiscal responsibility
• Pro forma for below ADM capacity –

provide consistent message of proactive plan                                                                                 
for continued financial sustainability

• 3-5 budget projection models
Sustainability

Strategies

27



6

Finance Committee (FC)
Accountability and Strategic Initiatives

• Annual Budget development & review
• Selection of External CPA Audit CPA firm

• Annual report preparation
• Annual audit review

• Awareness of financial metrics to ensure favorable review from outside business partners
• Comprehensive review of quarterly YTD F/S prior to board submission
• Review financial summaries of business segments (major fundraising events, food service, 

extracurricular activities, parent group, booster club, etc.)
• Assess current internal control environment, segregation of duties, etc. relevant to current 

staff size
• Major vendor selection & review of contracts
• Provide financial training to BOD Quarterly & Annual 

Processes

28



7

Finance Committee (FC)
Accountability and Strategic Initiatives

• F/S preparation
• Typical accounting functions

 Vendor payments (check registers)
 Collection of revenue sources
 A/C reconciliations (cash, other)

• Vendor purchases
• Reporting requirements – State, Federal, other
• SCPA internal reporting requirements
• Provide training to admin staff

Daily, Weekly,                                    
Monthly Recurring Functions

29



SCPA Board Committees 

 
Role of committees 
“A committee is created to provide counseling and advice for the board or to handle a task on the 
board’s agenda. Any recommendations made by a committee needs to be approved by the board, but 

remember, the board is not obligated to go with committee suggestions.”  (BoardSource)  

 
 
Types of Committees 
 

Committee SCPA Has? Purpose 

Executive X Formulates agenda for board meetings. Oversees and advises executive 

director. Completes annual performance review for executive director 

and presents to board for approval. 

CEO Support & 
Evaluation 

 Designs and develops the systems and processes that support the board-

CEO partnership and help the CEO get better at their role. (resource) 

Governance X Leads your board’s recruiting strategy, leads new board member 

orientation, organizes your board’s annual retreat, assesses the board’s 

strengths, and ensures the board receives necessary professional 

development. (resource) 

Policy  Reviews, drafts, and recommends policies to the full board for review, 

discussion, and approval.  

Nominations X Ad Hoc – Presents recommendation to board to fill unexpected board seat 

openings, interviews candidates for board opening appointments and 

makes recommendation to the board. 

Finance X Works with the staff to create the upcoming fiscal year budget, presents 

budget recommendations to the board, monitors implementation of the 

approved budget on a regular basis, recommends proposed budget 

revisions, and recommends policies for the management of the 

organization’s assets. (resource) 

Audit  Selects the outside auditor, meets with the auditor to receive the audit 

report and management letter, and discusses the management letter with 

the full board and the senior staff. May also be charged with auditing the 

expenses of the board and the chief executive officer. (resource) 

Strategic 
Planning 

 Partners with the school leader to write, review, and propose changes to 

the school’s long-term strategic plan. 

Development  Works with staff to develop a realistic fundraising plan, ensures board 

support of fundraising tasks and realization of fundraising goals, develops 

relationships and fosters a positive image of organization in the 

community. (resource) 

Academic 
Excellence 

 Measures the academic results of the organization against the goals 

established in your charter, accountability plan, and annual CEO goals. 

Monitors student performance against rigorous academic goals and raises 

strategic issues for board discussion. (resource) 

 
Board Discussion: 

1. Combine functions for current committees? 

a. Executive Committee have function of CEO Support & Evaluation 

30

https://boardsource.org/resources/really-need-board-committees/
https://boardontrack.com/blog/evaluation-committee/
https://boardontrack.com/blog/what-is-a-governance-committee/
https://boardontrack.com/blog/what-is-a-finance-committee/
https://www.asaecenter.org/resources/articles/an_plus/2015/december/the-basics-of-board-committee-structure
https://boardontrack.com/blog/board-development-committee/
https://boardontrack.com/blog/academic-excellence-committee-2/


b. Move function of Nominations to Governance (combine to be same committee – 
“Governance”) 

c. Finance Committee have function of Audit – rename to be Finance & Audit 

d. Policy – separate ad hoc committee or combined function? 
2. Any additional committees needed? 

 
 
Committee Composition 

 

Committee Composition Options Notes 

Executive Board Chair 
Vice Chair 
Parent Board Member 
Executive Director 

4 members 

Board Chair 
Vice Chair 
Governance Committee Chair 
Finance & Audit Committee Chair 
Executive Director 

5 members 

Governance Teacher Board Member 
Parent Board Member 
Community Board Member 
Staff Member 

4 members 

 

All seats designated (teacher, parent, 

community) 

Teacher Board Member 
Parent Board Member 
Board Member 
Staff Member 

4 members 

 

Two seats designated, one for best fit based on 

experience 

Finance & Audit Board Member 
Board Member 
Community Expert 
Staff Member (CFO) 

4 members 

 

Board members with most relevant 

background/experience 

Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Community Expert 
Community Expert 
Staff Member (CFO) 

6 members 

 

Board members with most relevant 

background/experience 

 
Board Discussion: 

1. How many members should there be on each committee? 

2. What should be the committee membership composition (which board members and staff, 

community membership, etc)? 
3. Requirement - All board members must be on at least one committee? 

 
 
 

 

31



 
Committee Appointments 
 

Board Discussion: 
1. Which board meeting should committee appointments occur at annually? September (one 

month after new board members are seated)? 
2. What should the committee term length be? Annual? 
3. How determine which individuals are best for which committees?  

a. Outline ideal competencies to evaluate (for example, accounting background for 
finance) 

b. Board decision in September on committee appointments? 
c. How chair selected for each committee?  

 

 
 

 

 

 

Resources: 
Harvard Law School Forum on Corporate Gov 
Boardable - Nonprofit Board Committees: A Q&A Guide To Grow Impact 

Board Officers and Committees: What Structure Works Best? 

What Committees Should Your Charter School Board Have? Board on Track 

 
 
  

32

https://boardable.com/resources/board-committees/
https://www.missionbox.com/article/68/board-officers-and-committees-what-structure-works-best
https://boardontrack.com/blog/school-board-committees/


Board Committee Member Nomination Form

Name: 

Address:  

Telephone: 651-395-5900 E-mail: 

Committee interest:   Finance ___ Succession Planning __ Governance __ Compensation __

The strategic direction of the board includes committees related to compensation planning, succession planning, 
improving board governance, and finance.  How will your set of skills contribute to these efforts?

What additional skills and personal characteristics cause you to want to serve on the board committee?

Are you committed to working between 5-10 hours a month in order to serve on this committee?

What questions do you have about this committee and its objectives?

This form must be fully completed. 
Return form to the attention of the XXXXXXXX.

Deadline is XXXXXX

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43


	Agenda
	1. Tour of Construction Areas - Bleachers, Press Box, Activities Offices
	2. Call to Order at 6:30 pm.
	3. Open Forum
	4. Board Calendar
	5. Consent Agenda (Board Minutes, Executive Director Report)
	A. Board Minutes
	SCPA Board Minutes July 19 2022

	B. Executive Director Report
	Executive Director Board Report August 2022
	COVID guidelines 2022-23
	Prep Guidance for a Healthy Learning Environment
	J. Gutierrez 2022-2023 Professional Development Plan

	C. Governance -- Meeting Minutes + Agenda Items
	SCPA Governance Committee Minutes July 28 2022


	6. Agenda
	A. Seating of New Board Members -- Christina Norman, Matt Stiles
	B. Board Officers for the 2022-2023 school year - Chair, Vice Chair, Treasurer, Secretary/Clerk
	Board Chair Description
	Board Vice Chair Description
	Board Treasurer Description
	Board Secretary Description

	C. 2022-2023 e-Learning Day Approval of 3 days
	eLearning MN Statute

	D. Board Election Committee Update & Discussion
	Board Election Committee

	E. Governance Committee - Update & Discussion
	SCPA Governance Committee Minutes July 28 2022
	Board Member Description of Duties 2022

	F. Succession Planning Committee -- Update & Discussion
	SCPA Succession Planning Minutes August 3 2022

	G. Finance Committee -- Update & Discussion
	SCPA FC-board report 8.16.22

	H. Compensation Committee -- Discussion on establishing it as Board Committee
	I. Advisory Board Member Participation in Board Meetings
	J. Board Committee Recruitment - Discussion
	Board Committee Nomination Form

	K. Board Retreat -- Planning & Discussion
	L. 2022-2023 Annual Report - 1st Reading, Approval in September
	Annual Report MN Statute
	2021-2022 Annual Report

	M. Facilities Office Space Discussion

	7. Adjourn Meeting

